
Page # 1 of 1 Posted: November 4, 2016 
 

REV 09/25/2015 
PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUES 286.0105:  ANY PERSON WHO DESIRES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION AT THIS MEETING WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR 
THIS PURPOSE MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED, WHICH SUCH 
WRITTEN RECORD IS NOT PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN. 
 

PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUTE 286.26: PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES NEEDING ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT 
KATHY RATHEL, 300 WEST PLANT STREET, WINTER GARDEN, FL 34787, (407) 656-4111, EXT 5149 - 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING. 

 

 
 
 
 
To: Will Hawthorne – Chairman 

David Kassander – Vice Chairman 
Mark DeFuso 
Heather Gantt 
Gerald Jowers 
Chris Lee 
Mark Maciel 
 

Copy to: Mike Bollhoefer 
Dan Langley 
Kurt Ardaman 
Ed Williams 
Stephen Pash 
Kelly Carson 
Jessica Frye 

 
RE: Agenda – November 7, 2016 at 6:30 PM 

Commission Chambers, City Hall 
 300 West Plant Street, Winter Garden 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE OCTOBER 3, 2016 MEETING  
 

ANNEXATION / FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT / REZONING (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 

4. 12451 Walker Pond Road (Lake Roberts Reserve) – American Orange County 
Investments 40, LLC et al / GrayRobinson, P.A. -- PUD Annexation/Zoning/FLUA 
Parcel ID # 36-22-27-0000-00-058, 01-23-27-0000-00-003, -009, -004, -058, -030, -066 & -050 

 

PRELIMINARY PLAT / FINAL PLAT / LOT SPLIT 
 

5. 605 E Plant Street (Heritage at Plant Street) – BFC Plant Street LLC / M.I. Homes of 
Orlando, LLC -- Pre Plat 
Parcel ID # 14-22-27-0000-00-012, 14-22-27-5656-01-391, & 14-22-27-0000-00-016 

 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 

6. 14131 W Colonial Drive – Amera Winter Garden, Ltd. / Romp n’ Roll 
Parcel ID # 22-22-27-0000-00-037 

 

VARIANCE (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 

7. 315 Florida Avenue – Ramiro Lopez 
Parcel ID # 23-22-27-2307-01-140 

 

8. 1717 Bridgepebble Road – Tim & Nelia Holmes 
Parcel ID # 04-23-27-8229-21-219 

 

ADJOURN to the next regular Planning and Zoning Board meeting on Monday, December 5, 
2016 at 6:30 p.m. in City Hall Commission Chambers, 300 W. Plant Street, 1st floor. 

For More Information, Contact: 
Kathy Rathel 

Customer Service Technician 
City of Winter Garden  
300 West Plant Street 

Winter Garden, FL 34787 
407.656.4111 ext. 5149 

krathel@cwgdn.com 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD AGENDA  

mailto:krathel@


 

 

OCTOBER 3, 2016 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 1 
 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

OCTOBER 3, 2016 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE / INVOCATION 

Chairman Will Hawthorne called the meeting of the City of Winter Garden Planning and 
Zoning Board to order at 6:31 p.m. in the City Hall Commission Chambers.  A moment of 
silence was followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 

The roll was called and a quorum was declared present. 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 

Chairman Will Hawthorne, Vice-Chairman David Kassander, and Board Members: Chris Lee, 
and Mark Maciel 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Mark DeFuso (excused), Heather Gantt (excused), and Gerald Jowers (excused) 

STAFF PRESENT: 
City Attorney Kurt Ardaman, Community Development Director Steve Pash, Planner I Jessica 
Frye, and recording secretary Kathleen Rathel 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Motion by Mark Maciel to approve the regular meeting minutes of September 12, 
2016 and seconded by David Kassander.  Motion carried unanimously 4 - 0. 

 
ANNEXATION / FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT / REZONING (PUBLIC HEARING) 
4. 420 W. Story Road – Leonel Lopez (ANNEXATION/FLU/ZONING) 

Planner Frye presented a voluntary annexation, zoning and future land use amendment request 
for the 0.21+/- acre enclave located at 420 W. Story Road.  The property is located on the 
southeast corner of W. Story Road and Foster Avenue.  The applicant has requested the 
annexation with an initial zoning of R-2 (Residential) and an Amendment to the Future Land 
Use Map to designate the property as Low Density Residential.  Staff has reviewed the 
request and recommends approval of Ordinances 16-62, 16-63 and 16-64. 

Motion by Mark Maciel to recommend approval of Ordinances 16-62, 16-63 & 16-
64 with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the agenda package).  Seconded by 
Chris Lee the motion carried unanimously 4 - 0. 
 

DR
AF
T



 

OCTOBER 3, 2016 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 2 
 

5. 707 W. Plant Street – 707 W Plant St, LLC (FLU MAP AMENDMENT)  
Planner Frye presented a request to amend the Future Land Use designation for a 3.07 +/- acre 
property located at 707 W. Plant Street with a zoning of R-2.  The applicant is requesting to 
amend the future land use designation from NC (Residential-Neighborhood Commercial) to 
LR (Low Density Residential) to allow the property to be rezoned to PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) at a later date.  The request for Low Density Residential is consistent with the 
surrounding residential neighborhoods and the proposed PUD would require approval from 
the Development Review Committee, the Planning & Zoning Board, and City Commission.  
Staff has reviewed the request and recommends approval of Ordinance 16-71. 

General discussion verified this request was for a future land use amendment only and the 
property would retain its initial zoning of R-2. 

Motion by David Kassander to recommend approval of Ordinance 16-71 with Staff 
Recommendations (as provided in the agenda package).  Seconded by Chris Lee the 
motion carried unanimously 4 - 0. 
 

6. 605 & 755 E. Plant Street & 290 E. Newell Street – MI Homes of Orlando  
(PUD REZONING) 
Community Development Director Pash presented a PUD Rezoning request for the 16.66 +/- 
acres of land at 605 & 755 E. Plant Street and 290 E. Newell Street.  The property is located 
north of E. Plant Street, east of Donald Drive, and west of the Library.  The applicants have 
requested to rezone the property from City R-1 (Single Family Residential) and R-2 
(Residential) to PUD (Planned Unit Development).  The proposed PUD will consist of 43 
townhomes and 41 Single Family Dwellings.  The townhomes will be adjacent to the trail and 
Plant Street and transition into Single Family homes.  Twenty five of the townhomes located 
along Plant Street will include a second floor 400 square foot Granny Flat located above the 
garage.  This will only be allowed at original development to make sure it meets all fire code 
requirements.  The project will contain one recreation area in the center with a swimming pool 
and extra parking for guests, perimeter fencing and walls, a golf cart path that connects to 
Donald Drive.  Staff has reviewed the request and recommends approval of Ordinance 16-72. 

General discussion ensued on the location of the townhomes and dwellings within the project. 

Chad Moorhead with Madden, Moorhead and Stokes at 431 E. Horatio Ave, Maitland FL 
32751, and Dan Kaiser with M.I. Homes were present to answer any questions.  He stated 
they have worked diligently with the community and Staff in revising the original plans to 
bring the current project before the Board. 

Walter Swafford, 315 Courtlea Oaks Blvd, Winter Garden FL, inquired about the width of the 
lots and the dwelling size for the single family homes.  Chad Moorhead replied the lots would 
be 50 feet wide and there would be a 50 foot buffer along the north side of the property 
containing a 6 foot masonry wall with landscaping.  Dan Kaiser stated the single family 
homes would range in size from 1800 square feet to 3800 square feet. 

Arthur Mitchell, 204 Trail Bridge Ct, Winter Garden FL, inquired about the distance between 
the edge of the retention pond on the east side to the property line.  Chad Moorhead stated 
from the water surface to the property line would be approximately 50 feet and clarified it 
would be a detention pond versus a retention pond.  They were also looking into vacating the 
unopened 30 foot Perkins Street right of way.  

DR
AF
T



 

OCTOBER 3, 2016 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 3 
 

Mr. Pash clarified that all the fence heights would be 6 feet. 

Bobbie Joyce, 260 Gary Drive, Winter Garden FL, asked if the only entrance and exit would 
be from Plant Street or if there would be another location on Donald Drive.  Chad Moorhead 
stated the only entrance/exit would be from Plant Street but there was a golf cart access 
proposed for Donald Drive. 

Board Member Kassander inquired about the size of the Townhomes as the ordinance stated 
the minimum size was 1,000 square feet.  Dan Kaiser stated the proposed size of the 
Townhomes would range from approximately 1,600 to 1,800 square feet.  Board Member 
Kassander asked if the current ordinance could be amended to increase the minimum square 
footage from 1,000 to 1,500.  Discussion ensued on the minimum square footage. 

Board Member Kassander asked if the 20% open space included the retention pond.  Mr. Pash 
stated the retention pond is the primary area but it also included the clubhouse, pool, and 
landscape buffers. 

Motion by David Kassander to recommend approval of Ordinance 16-72 with an 
amendment to Paragraph 3, Section 1, F-3, to raise the minimum living area to 1500 
square feet and with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the agenda package).  
Seconded by Will Hawthorne. 

Board Member Lee questioned raising the minimum square footage on the Single Family 
homes to 1,800 along with the 1,500 for the Townhomes.  The applicants asked if the 
minimum could be changed to 1,700 square feet for the single family homes. 

David Kassander amended his original motion to include a 1,500 minimum square 
footage for Townhomes and 1,700 minimum square feet on the Single Family 
homes.  Seconded by Will Hawthorne the motion carried unanimously 4 - 0 

7. 602 E. Story Road – Orange County Public Schools (ANNEX/ZONING/FLU) 
Community Development Director Pash presented a voluntary annexation, zoning and future 
land use amendment request for an 8.82 +/- acre enclave at 602 E. Story Road.  The property 
is located on the southwest corner of E. Story Road and 9th Street.  The applicant has 
requested the annexation with an initial zoning of R-2 and an Amendment to the Future Land 
Use Map to designate the property as Low Density Residential.  Staff has reviewed the 
request and recommends approval of Ordinances 16-68, 16-69 and 16-70. 

Tyrone Smith with Orange County Public Schools Facilities, 6501 Magic Way, Orlando FL, 
addressed the Board.  He stated they are proposing to relocate the existing Maxey Elementary 
School to remove it from the industrial area and provide a new core building to house 600 to 
650 students.  They plan on keeping the Maxey Elementary name at the new location. 

City Attorney Ardaman questioned what was going to happen to the existing Maxey site.  Mr. 
Smith stated it would go through a repurposing process by the School Board and the use 
would be determined at a later date.  There were several options but he could not share them 
at this time.  Board Member Hawthorne asked what the timeline for repurposing would be.  
Mr. Smith stated it depended on the needs of the district while the new school was being built 
but could take anywhere from 6 months to 1 year. 

Tyrone Smith clarified the reason for annexing was due to the property being in the Joint 
Planning Area and it was a requirement to annex in order to receive city services and utilities 
instead of keeping the school in Orange County jurisdiction. 

DR
AF
T



 

OCTOBER 3, 2016 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 4 
 

Ed Williams of Williams Development Services, 920 Delaney Ave, Orlando FL, addressed 
the Board as a member of the public.  He stated he finds it difficult to accept that the School 
Board will not share what the potential repurposing program will be.  They are asking for 
approval for the new site without providing their potential intentions for the old site.  He 
believes these answers should be provided before it is submitted to Commission. 

The Board discussed whether any conditions of approval could be included before it goes 
before the City Council.  City Attorney Ardaman stated it is two different properties and 
asked the applicant about deferring until this information could be provided. 

Tyrone Smith stated there is a contract on the property so there is a need to move forward and 
that it is no different from the process the City would take in evaluating any new project.  
Chairman Hawthorne asked the reasoning behind why they could not share the information. 

Discussion ensued on the options the Board had to either defer until more information is 
obtained or include conditions that prior to being considered by City Commission the City 
have time to evaluate the possible uses on the existing site as it may affect the new project. 

Laura Kelly with Orange County Public Schools and in charge of real estate and Legal, 6501 
Magic Way, Orlando FL, stated the existing site will continue to be used for at least another 
year until the new site is opened.  The School system does not know at this time what will 
happen to the existing site but there would need to be significant repurposing in order to use 
it.  The new school site is slated to open in 2018 so it would not be until early 2018 before the 
school board would know what would happen to the old campus.  Uses are limited but it 
would not become another school. 

Board Member Maciel stated the Board wants to work with Orange County Public School but 
the Board would like some parameters to know at least the limitations of future uses. 

Discussion ensued regarding the uses of the new site and the effects of the future site usage 
and the ramifications of tabling this project one month in order to obtain more information. 

Arthur Mitchell, 204 Trail Bridge Ct, Winter Garden FL, stated the new location for the 
school is a good thing but as a taxpayer and as a resident he would like a commitment that the 
old location will not be turned into something undesirable. 

Motion by Will Hawthorne to recommend approval of Ordinances 16-68, 16-69 & 
16-70 with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the agenda package) contingent 
upon Orange County Public Schools providing sufficient data of permitted uses or 
prohibited uses for the existing site to Staff before recommending approval to City 
Commission, and, if such information by the applicant is not provided to Staff, then 
the Board recommends denial.  Seconded by Chris Lee the motion carried 
unanimously 4 - 0. 

8. 14991 W. Colonial Drive – 14991 W Colonial LLC (ANNEX/ZONING/FLU) 
Community Development Director Pash presented a voluntary annexation, zoning and future 
land use amendment request for the 3.74 +/- acre enclave at 14991 W. Colonial Drive.  The 
property is located on the northeast corner of W. Colonial Drive and Tildenville School Road.  
The applicant has requested the annexation with an initial zoning of C-2 and an Amendment 
to the Future Land Use Map to designate the property as Commercial.  The property also falls 
within the State Road 50 Overlay District which has additional design standards that would 
have to be met when the property is developed.  Staff has reviewed the request and 
recommends approval of Ordinances 16-65, 16-66 & 16-67. 

DR
AF
T



 

OCTOBER 3, 2016 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 5 
 

Board Member Kassander asked if there was any significant difference between C-1 (County) 
and C-2 (City).  Mr. Pash stated they were very similar but the County zoning may allow a 
few additional uses that would fall under a Special Exception with the City. 

Motion by Chris Lee to recommend approval of Ordinances 16-65, 16-66 & 16-67 
with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the agenda package).  Seconded by 
Mark Maciel the motion carried unanimously 4 - 0. 

9. 15001 W. Colonial Drive – 7-Eleven, Inc (ANNEX/ZONING/FLU) 
Community Development Director Pash presented a voluntary annexation, zoning and future 
land use amendment request for the 1.58 +/- acre enclave at 15001 W. Colonial Drive.  The 
property is located on the northwest corner of W. Colonial Drive and Tildenville School Road 
and is the current site of the 7-Eleven.  The applicant has requested the annexation with an 
initial zoning of C-2 and an Amendment to the Future Land Use Map to designate the 
property as Commercial.  The property also falls within the State Road 50 Overlay District 
which has additional design standards that would have to be met. Staff has reviewed the 
request and recommends approval of Ordinances 16-55, 16-56 & 16-57. 

Board Member Hawthorne asked how the Overlay affects an existing use.  Mr. Pash stated it 
would affect redevelopment or any site changes.  The advantage for annexing would provide 
local services. 

Motion by David Kassander to recommend approval of Ordinances 16-55, 16-56 & 
16-57 with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the agenda package).  Seconded 
by Will Hawthorne the motion carried unanimously 4 - 0. 

 
SPECIAL EXCEPTION (PUBLIC HEARING) 
10. 1218 Winter Garden Vineland Road, Ste 100 & 104 – My Gym Children’s Fitness Center 

Planner Frye presented a Special Exception request for the property located at 1218 
Winter Garden Vineland Road, Suites 100 & 104 located within the Winter Garden 
Business Park.  The applicant is requesting the Special Exception to allow a children’s 
fitness center with associated child care programs such as, fitness classes for various age 
groups, day camps, Parent’s Night Out events, and children’s parties.  All equipment and 
activities would be contained within the facility.  Staff has reviewed the requests and 
recommends approval subject to the conditions outlined in the Staff Report. 

Board Member Lee asked for a list of the conditions.  Ms. Frye stated the conditions 
included having the classes staggered to maintain appropriate traffic flow within the 
development, a maximum enrollment for all provided classes of 30 children, activities and 
equipment must be kept within the building, and the interior buildout of the space would 
require a building permit.  Ms. Frye reviewed the traffic flow and parking to make sure the 
use would be acceptable.  The two suites total approximately 3,500 square feet.   

Motion by Mark Maciel to recommend approval of the Special Exception [for 1218 
Winter Garden Vineland Road Suites 100 & 104] with Staff Recommendations (as 
provided in the agenda package).  Seconded by David Kassander the motion carried 
unanimously 4 - 0. 
 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN CODE UPDATES (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 

DR
AF
T



 

OCTOBER 3, 2016 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 6 
 

11. Ordinance 16-59 – Comp Plan Amendment for Dillard Street Corridor 
Community Development Director Pash presented a comprehensive plan amendment to add a 
statement into Policy 2-1.1.5 and add policy 2-1.1.15 of the multimodal transportation 
element of the Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan to include policies pertaining to the 
Dillard Street Corridor project; providing for severability; providing for an effective date.  
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 16-59. 

Board Member Kassander asked why the City had to do an ordinance.  Mr. Pash explained the 
ordinance was required to amend the City’s comprehensive plan which will help the City 
pursue grants and different alternatives for funding. 

Motion by David Kassander to approve Ordinance 16-59.  Seconded by Chris Lee 
the motion carried unanimously 4 - 0. 

  
ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:36 p.m. 
 

ATTEST:  APPROVED: 
   

Recording Secretary Kathleen Rathel  Chairman Will Hawthorne 
 

DR
AF
T



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 4 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  November 4, 2016 MEETING DATE: November 7, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinances 16-42, 16-43, & 16-44 

12564 Stoneybrook West Pkwy; 12451, 12304, 12174 Walker Pond Road 
(ANNEXATION, FLU AMENDMENT, REZONING PUD) 

 PROJECT NAME Lake Roberts Reserve Annexation, FLU, & PUD 
 PARCEL ID# 36-22-27-0000-00-058, 01-23-27-0000-00-009 (a portion), 

01-23-27-0000-00-004, 01-23-27-0000-00-058, 
01-23-27-0000-00-030, 01-23-27-0000-00-003, 
01-23-27-0000-00-066, 01-23-27-0000-00-050 

  
ISSUE: Applicant is requesting annexation, FLU amendment, and PUD rezoning of 

78.87 +/- acres of land in order to develop a residential subdivision with 90 
single-family lots.   

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: American Orange County Investments 40, LLC, et al.  
  
CURRENT ZONING: County A-1 Citrus Rural District 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: City PUD Planned Unit Development 
  
CURRENT FLU: County Rural & Rural 1/1 
  
PROPOSED FLU: City Low Density Residential 
  
SUMMARY: The developer requests annexation, Future Land Use Amendment, and 

PUD rezoning approval for the Subject Property in order to develop 90 
single-family residences with associated site improvements. Throughout 
the DRC review process, Staff has expressed concerns about the potential 
environmental impacts of constructing a causeway (road) through the 
subject property’s wetland areas.  Without adequate assurances from 
Orange County EPD that the construction of the causeway will not cause 
significant environmental degradation to the surrounding water bodies, 
Staff cannot recommend that this project proceed within City limits (See 
Staff Report). 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 City Staff recommends denial of the proposed Ordinance 16-42 to annex 

the subject property into the City of Winter Garden. Without approval of the 
Annexation Ordinance (16-42), the Comprehensive Plan Amendment and 
PUD Rezoning Ordinances (16-43 & 16-44) cannot be considered for 
approval. 

  



NEXT STEP(S):  
  
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 

Lake Roberts Reserve Preliminary Development Plan 
Ordinance 16-42 

 



LOCATION MAP 
 

Lake Roberts Reserve 
 

ANNEXATION, FLU AMENDMENT, PUD REZONING 
 

 

 



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:  KELLY CARSON, URBAN DESIGNER 
DATE:  NOVEMBER 2, 2016 
SUBJECT:  ANNEXATION, FUTURE LAND USE, PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

REZONING (ORDINANCES 16-42, 16-43, 16-44) 
  12564 Stoneybrook West Pkwy; 12451, 12304, 12174 Walker Pond Road 

(78.87 +/- ACRES) 
Parcel ID#   36-22-27-0000-00-058, 01-23-27-0000-00-009 (a portion),  

01-23-27-0000-00-004, 01-23-27-0000-00-058, 01-23-27-0000-00-030, 
01-23-27-0000-00-003, 01-23-27-0000-00-066, 01-23-27-0000-00-050  

   
APPLICANT:  American Orange County Investments 40, LLC    
  
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for the appropriateness of 
annexation, as well as for compliance with the City of Winter Garden Land Development 
Regulations, Comprehensive Plan, and Future Land Use Map. The subject property, located on 
the south side of Stoneybrook West Parkway, north of McKinnon Road and west of Windermere 
Road is approximately 78.87 ± acres. The map below depicts the location of the subject property 
within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits: 

 



Lake Roberts Reserve PUD – 78.87 +/- acres 
Annexation, FLU, PUD Rezoning - Staff Report 

November 2, 2016 
Page 2 

 
The subject property is located within Unincorporated Orange County and carries the 

zoning designation A-1 (Citrus Rural). The subject property is designated Rural and Rural 1/1 on 
Orange County’s Future Land Use Map. A portion of the subject property is located within the 
Windermere Rural Settlement. The applicant has requested annexation into the City, amendment 
to the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to designate the property 
as Low Density Residential (LR), and rezoning the property to PUD Planned Unit Development.   

 In accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, permitted uses within the Low 
Density Residential Future Land Use category include single-family residences with a residential 
density between 2 & 6 dwelling units per acre, as well as two-family residences, churches, and 
schools within certain zoning districts. The zoning classifications consistent with the Low 
Density Residential Future Land Use designation include PUD, R-1A, R-1, R-2, R-1B, & INT. 

EXISTING USE 
The subject property currently features mostly vacant natural land consisting of pastures, 

abandoned citrus groves, oak hammocks, non-forested wetlands, freshwater marshes, and 
portions of Lake Reaves and Lake Roberts. There are also two single-family residential 
structures in the southern portion of the subject property, as well as a covered equipment area, 
covered concrete area with wood stalls for animals and farm equipment, dirt drives, and other 
improvements. The northernmost portion of the subject property features a single-family 
residence, with a pool and several other accessory structures.  

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The adjacent properties include a portion of Lake Roberts to the west as well as a 

property located at 12572 Stoneybrook West Parkway, which is zoned A-1 and is located in 
Unincorporated Orange County.  

To the north is a portion of Lake Reaves, as well as a property located at 12552 
Stoneybrook West Parkway that contains a single-family residence, is zoned R-1, and is located 
within the City of Winter Garden. Also to the north is a vacant agricultural parcel located at 
12577 Stoneybrook West Parkway featuring grazing land, which is zoned A-1 and located in 
Unincorporated Orange County.  

There are numerous properties to the south of the subject property, including the parcel 
located at 12408 Walker Pond Road, which features a single-family residence, is zoned A-1, and 
is located in Unincorporated Orange County. There are also two single-family residential 
subdivisions located to the south of the subject property - Butler Bay and Windermere Grande - 
as well as a portion of the Windermere Country Club’s golf course. All of these parcels are 
zoned R-CE-C and are located in Unincorporated Orange County.  

There are numerous parcels located east of the subject property including a parcel located 
at 12166 Walker Pond Road, which contains a single-family residence, is zoned A-1, and is 
located in Unincorporated Orange County. Also in the County is a parcel located along Walker 
Pond Road containing a barn and zoned A-1. Another parcel to the east is a vacant residential 
property located at 12236 Reaves Road, which is zoned R-1 and is located in Winter Garden. 
Additionally, the Windermere Crossing single-family residential Subdivision is located to the 
east of the subject property. The parcels therein are zoned R-1 and are located in Winter Garden. 



Lake Roberts Reserve PUD – 78.87 +/- acres 
Annexation, FLU, PUD Rezoning - Staff Report 

November 2, 2016 
Page 3 

 
PROPOSED USE 

The developer purchased the subject property and intends to develop 90 single-family 
residences with associated site improvements. Proposed lot sizes range from 75’ wide interior 
lots to 100’ wide lots located adjacent to Lake Roberts. The project will also include recreation 
spaces with play areas, a dog park, pavilion, and wetland observation areas and boardwalks.  

Currently, the majority of the subject property does not have road access. The developer 
initially pursued developing Walker Pond Road as the main project access, as this road currently 
connects to Windermere Road to the east. However, the developer was unable to acquire the 
right-of-way needed to reconstruct the road per City standards. Also, the Walker Pond Road 
proposal was met with resistance from adjacent property owners.  The developer then pursued 
developing an access point south to McKinnon Road through the existing Windermere Country 
Club’s Golf Course, but the surrounding property owners pushed back vigourously on this 
proposal as well. Finally, the developer proposed the current access road configuration. The main 
access point to the site will be via a road that cuts through a portion of the wetland areas on the 
subject property and connects to Stoneybrook West Parkway to the north (please see attached 
Lake Roberts Reserve Preliminary Development Plans).   

PUBLIC FACILITY ANALYSIS 
The City will provide garbage collection, police protection, and all other services 

regularly provided to City of Winter Garden residents including building permits. The property 
will be served by both Orange County Fire and Rescue and the City of Winter Garden Fire 
Department under the First Response System.  

Only two of the proposed residences are eligible to be hooked up to City water and sewer 
services. The majority of the proposed properties are not within Winter Garden’s utility service 
area, and Orange County does not wish to lose these potential utility customers. These properties 
would need to attain water and sewer services from Orange County.  

COMMUNITY MEETINGS 
On October 25, 2015, a Community Meeting was held in the City Commission Chambers 

to discuss the proposed project with surrounding property owners. The reaction to the proposal 
was mixed, with some residents expressing concerns about the increase in traffic volumes along 
Walker Pond Road. Solutions to the traffic issue were discussed including a variety of buffering 
options. To address these concerns, the developer chose to only utilize Walker Pond Road as an 
emergency vehicle access road and provide the main subdivision access from a parcel adjacent to 
Stoneybrook West Parkway. The new access design involves developing a causeway through the 
wetland areas on the subject property, which is described in detail in the next section.   

A second community meeting, this time exclusively with the residents in Lake Roberts 
Court (Butler Bay), was held after the first. The residents were presented the current road 
configuration through the wetlands and objected to the proposal due to potential environmental 
impacts in and around Lake Roberts.  

STAFF CONCERNS 
In accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Regulations, 

one of the approval criteria for Planned Unit Developments is that there be an availability and 



Lake Roberts Reserve PUD – 78.87 +/- acres 
Annexation, FLU, PUD Rezoning - Staff Report 

November 2, 2016 
Page 4 

 
adequacy of primary streets and thoroughfares to support traffic to be generated within the 
proposed PUD and the surrounding area. In order to address this requirement and respond to the 
objections of surrounding property owners, the developer is proposing to construct a two-way 
road with pedestrian walk over and through the wetlands on the subject property.  

Construction of this causeway would involve dredging the existing organic soils (muck) 
within the wetlands and filling these areas with imported materials, then constructing a 36’ wide 
asphalt road section (two 12’ wide travel lanes and two 6’ wide paved shoulders), as well as a 
10’ wide concrete ped/bike path. All told, this roadway section will be approximately 78’ wide, 
which does not include the area required to slope the newly elevated land down to existing grade 
within the wetland. This section of wetland currently connects two adjacent lakes: Lake Roberts 
and Lake Reaves, and under high water conditions the two lakes become one connected lake. 
After the construction of this new causeway, these two water bodies will only be connected by 
three pipes installed under the new causeway, perpendicular to the elevated road.  

One of the main conditions of approval of this project was receipt of a letter from Orange 
County Environmental Protection Division (EPD) regarding their review of the causeway’s 
wetland and lake impacts. As of the date of this Staff Report, the City has yet to receive a letter 
that addresses all of the City’s concerns. Namely, the City has not received a letter on EPD 
letterhead, signed by EPD, stating that the agency has evaluated the potential negative impacts to 
the lakes and wetlands with the construction of the causeway and that the proposed mitigation 
actions to be taken by the developer will have a net positive impact on the lake and wetland 
environments, and stating that no other mitigation or construction methods would produce a 
better outcome in this regard. Without this letter addressing these specific concerns, City Staff 
cannot be confident that the project will not cause significant environmental degradation to the 
property’s wetland areas as well as the surrounding lakes.  

Given the potential impacts to properties located adjacent to the wetland and lakes, Staff does 
not believe the proposed project will satisfy the following PUD approval criteria:  

• The proposed PUD will not substantially devalue or prevent reasonable use and 
enjoyment of the adjacent properties. 

• Prevention of erosion and degrading or enhancement of the surrounding areas. 

Furthermore, the following sections of the City’s Comprehensive Plan are several that address 
environmental protection as it pertains to wetlands (emphasis by Staff): 
Policy 5-1.4.1: It is the City‘s policy that no development is allowed in a wetland area. However, 
encroachment into a wetland may be allowed in cases where no other feasible or practical 
alternatives exist that would permit the reasonable use of the land or where there is an overriding 
public benefit based upon review by the appropriate regulatory agency and subject to the 
regulatory agency‘s policies and rules. 

Policy 5-1.4.5: The City shall continue to utilize the flexibility allowed in the Planned Unit 
Development classification help to protect and conserve identified wetlands such as clustering of 
development and the transfer of development rights out of wetlands to uplands. 

Policy 5-1.4.13: The City shall require a wetland buffer of an average of at least 25 feet with a 
minimum of 15 feet at any one point between wetlands and new development in order to protect 
water quality, preserve natural wetland functions, and preserve natural habitat. The buffer, as 



Lake Roberts Reserve PUD – 78.87 +/- acres 
Annexation, FLU, PUD Rezoning - Staff Report 

November 2, 2016 
Page 5 

 
measured landward from the approved jurisdictional line, shall be maintained in a natural 
vegetative state and be free of exotic and nuisance species. 

Staff does not believe that it is appropriate to annex the subject property at this time as 
the proposed project is not consistent with the policies found within the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan or the regulations found within the Land Development Code.  
 

SUMMARY 
City Staff recommends denial of the proposed Ordinance 16-42 to annex the subject 

property into the City of Winter Garden. Without adequate assurances that the construction of 
the causeway through the wetlands will not cause significant environmental degradation to the 
surrounding water bodies, Staff cannot recommend that this project proceed within City limits. 
Without approval of the Annexation Ordinance (16-42), the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
and PUD Rezoning Ordinances (16-43 & 16-44) cannot be considered for approval.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Lake Roberts Reserve PUD – 78.87 +/- acres 
Annexation, FLU, PUD Rezoning - Staff Report 

November 2, 2016 
Page 6 

 
 
 
 
 

AERIAL PHOTO 
Lake Roberts Reserve PUD 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Lake Roberts Reserve PUD – 78.87 +/- acres 
Annexation, FLU, PUD Rezoning - Staff Report 

November 2, 2016 
Page 7 

 
 

 
ZONING MAP 

Lake Roberts Reserve PUD 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Property: 
Change from 

County A-1 to City 
PUD 



Lake Roberts Reserve PUD – 78.87 +/- acres 
Annexation, FLU, PUD Rezoning - Staff Report 

November 2, 2016 
Page 8 

 
 
 

 
FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

Lake Roberts Reserve PUD 
 

 
 
 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 

Subject Property: 
Change from 

County Rural / 
Rural 1/1 to City 

LR 





































1
2
5
'

2
0
'

2
0
'

75'

MAX BUILDING
PAD

20' FRONT
SETBACK

20' REAR
SETBACK

5' ACCESSORY /
POOL SETBACK

5' SIDE SETBACKS

2
5
'

1
5
'

15' FRONT PORCH
SETBACK25' FRONT GARAGE

SETBACK

(25' PD BOUNDARY)

1
2

5
'

2
0

'

2
0

'

80'

MAX BUILDING
PAD

MAX IMPERVIOUS
(65%)

20' FRONT
SETBACK

20' REAR
SETBACK

5' ACCESSORY /
POOL SETBACK

7.5' SIDE SETBACKS

2
5

'

25' FRONT GARAGE
SETBACK

1
5

'

15' FRONT PORCH
SETBACK

(25' PD BOUNDARY)

MAX BUILDING
PAD

25' FRONT GARAGE
SETBACK

25' STREET SIDE
SETBACK

2
0
'

1
2
5
'

2
0
'

95'

20' FRONT
SETBACK

20' REAR
SETBACK

5' ACCESSORY /
POOL SETBACK

7.5' SIDE SETBACK

1
5
'

15' FRONT PORCH
SETBACK

2
5
'

(25' PD BOUNDARY)

1
2

5
'

2
0

'

90'

MAX BUILDING
PAD

20' FRONT
SETBACK

20' REAR
SETBACK

5' ACCESSORY /
POOL SETBACK

5' SIDE SETBACK

1
5

'

15' FRONT PORCH
SETBACK

25' FRONT GARAGE
SETBACK

25' STREET SIDE
SETBACK

2
0

'

2
5

'

(25' PD BOUNDARY)
90'

25'

WETLAND RESTORATION AND LITTORAL

PLANTINGS TO BE INSTALLED IN THE 25'

BUFFER AND IN CLUSTERS AROUND THE

COMPENSATING STORAGE POND BASIN

25' BUFFER RETENTION

AREAS

25'

25' BUFFER

WETLAND RESTORATION AND LITTORAL

PLANTINGS TO BE INSTALLED IN THE 25'

BUFFER AND IN CLUSTERS AROUND THE

COMPENSATING STORAGE POND BASIN

RETAINING WALL

BERM

SCALE

SHEET

PROJECT NO.

B
Y

D
A

TE
R

E
V.

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

DATE

Date:
0'

d
a
ly

 d
e
si

g
n
 g

ro
u
p

 in
c
.

U
rb

an
 P

la
nn

in
g,

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e,

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

su
lti

ng
91

3 
N

 P
en

ns
yl

va
ni

a 
A

ve
, W

in
te

r P
ar

k,
 F

L 
32

78
9 

 (4
07

) 7
40

-7
37

3 
 w

w
w

.d
al

yd
es

ig
n.

co
m

20' 20' 40'

18

09/20/2016

20

1441

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

L
A

K
E

 
R

O
B

E
R

T
'
S

 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

W
I
N

T
E

R
 
G

A
R

D
E

N
,
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN STANDARDS

PLAN
TYPICAL LOT  75' X 125'

1

PLAN
LOTS (27 - 34)  90' X 125'*

2

SITE DATA

SITE DATA - TRACTS

*MIN.LOTS (89 & 90) 75 X 115'

1
4-

25
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 3
/1

/2
01

6
jc

c

PLAN
CORNER LOT  90' X 125'

3
PLAN
CORNER LOT 36  95' X 125'

4
SECTION
TYPICAL VEGETATIVE WETLAND BUFFER

B

2
6-

24
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 5
/2

3/
20

16
jc

c

3
7-

13
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 7
/5

/2
01

6
jc

c

4
9-

20
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 7
/1

9/
20

16
jc

c



LOT 27

LOT 28

LOT 29

LOT 30

LOT 31

LOT 32

LOT 33

LOT 34

LOT 35

PRIVATE DOCK

PRIVATE DOCK

PRIVATE DOCK

MAXIMUM LENGTH OF DOCK NOT

TO EXCEED100' PAST NORMAL

HIGH WATER LINE (NHWL)

W

E

T

L

A

N

D

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

W

E

T

L

A

N

D

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

NHWL 108.11

NHWL 108.11

1

5

'

1

5

'

1

5

'

1
5
'

1
5
'

2

6

0

'
 

+

/

-

W

E

T

L

A

N

D

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

LAKE ROBERTS

26'

2
4

'

100' MAX

4' WIDE

MAXIMUM LENGTH OF DOCK NOT

TO EXCEED100' PAST NORMAL

HIGH WATER LINE (NHWL)

(
N

H
W

L
)

SCALE

SHEET

PROJECT NO.

B
Y

D
A

TE
R

E
V.

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

DATE

Date:
0'

d
a

ly
 d

e
si

g
n
 g

ro
u
p

 in
c
.

U
rb

an
 P

la
nn

in
g,

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e,

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

su
lti

ng
91

3 
N

 P
en

ns
yl

va
ni

a 
A

ve
, W

in
te

r P
ar

k,
 F

L 
32

78
9 

 (4
07

) 7
40

-7
37

3 
 w

w
w

.d
al

yd
es

ig
n.

co
m

40' 40' 80'

D-201

09/2016

40

1441

M
A

S
T

E
R

 
D

O
C

K
 
P

L
A

N

D
O

C
K

S

L
A

K
E

 
R

O
B

E
R

T
'
S

 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

W
I
N

T
E

R
 
G

A
R

D
E

N
,
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

DOCK LENGTHS MAY NOT EXCEED 100' PAST THE NHWE.

DOCKS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM SIDE SETBACK OF 15 FEET FROM THE
PROJECTED PROPERTY LINE ABUTTING THE SHORE.

NO DOCK, WALK, DECK, OR OTHER SIMILAR SHORELINE IMPROVEMENT
SHALL HAVE A SURFACE AREA EXCEEDING 1,000 SQUARE FEET.

INDIVIDUAL BOARDWALKS/BOAT DOCKS ARE CONCEPTUALLY DEPICTED AND
SUBJECT TO FINAL DESIGN AND PERMITTING.

BOARDWALKS/BOAT DOCKS SHALL BE PERMITTED INDIVIDUALLY BY LOT
OWNER AND ARE NOT INCLUDED WITH THE SITE INFRASTRUCTURE
CONSTRUCTION, WITH EXCEPTION OF ANY COMMUNITY BOARDWALKS,
DOCKS AND/OR PIERS.

DOCKS SHALL COMPLY WITH CITY OF WINTER GARDEN ORDINANCE 11-20 (AS
CODIFIED IN CHAPTER 118 OF THE CITY CODE).

DOCKS SHALL BE PERMITTED FOR LOTS 27-32

THE HOMEOWNER SHALL HAVE THE OPTION TO SHORTEN THE LENGTH OF
THEIR WALKWAY; HOWEVER, THE LENGTH OF THE DOCK SHOWN IS THE
MAXIMUM ALLOWED.

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN WILL PERMIT ALL DOCK REQUESTS FROM LOTS
27-31.

MASTER DOCK PLAN

MASTER DOCK PLAN NOTES

TYPICAL SINGLE DOCK DETAIL

1
4-

25
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 3
/1

/2
01

6
jc

c

2
6-

24
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 5
/2

3/
20

16
jc

c

3
7-

13
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 7
/5

/2
01

6
jc

c

4
9-

20
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 7
/1

9/
20

16
jc

c

UPDATED

BOUNDARY



118.9

NG

118.6

118.9

120.3

120.7

119.4

1

1

3

.

6

1

1

5

.

1

1

1

5

.

0

1

1

5

.

3

1

1

7

.

2

1

1

4

.

1

1

1

6

.

0

1

1

7

.

5

1

1

7

.

5

1

1

8

.

2

1

1

7

.

8

1

1

8

.

4

1

1

8

.

0

1

1

8

.

3

1

1

7

.

9

1

1

8

.

9

1

1

7

.

7

1

1

7

.

3

1

1

7

.

4

1

1

8

.

9

1

1

8

.

5

1

8

.

2

1

1

9

.

1

1

1

8

.

5

1

1

8

.

1

1

1

7

.

8

1
1
4
.
1

1
1
5
.
2

1
1
3
.
5

1
1
4
.
6

1
1
4
.
5

1
1
4
.
3

1
1
4
.
1

1
1
3
.
9

1

1

8

.

3

1

1

7

.

9

1

1

8

.

0

1

1

7

.

7

1

1

7

.

6

1

1

7

.

3

1

1

6

.

8

1

1

7

.3

116.1

NG

NG

1

1

7

.

6

1

1

7

.

2

1

1

7

.

5

NG

1

1

7

.

0

1

1

7

.

3

1

1

7

.

5

1

1

7

.

7

1

1

7

.

9

1

1

8

.

3

1

1

8

.

9

120.1

1

1

9

.

5

1

1

9

.

2

1

1

9

.

8

1

1

9

.

6

1

1

9

.

5

119.2

112.6

1

1

7

.

8

1
1
3
.
6

1
1
3
.
4

1
1
3
.
2

NG

113.9

113.6

1

1

3

.

9

1

1

8

.

3

1

1

8

.

6

1

1

8

.

8

1

1

8

.

7

1

1

7

.

3

1

1

6

.

8

1

1

8

.

6

1

1

8

.

9 1

1

9

.

3

1

1

8

.

9

120.9

113.6

1

1

7

.

6

1

1

8

.

7

1

1

8

.

4

1

1

8

.

8

1

1

8

.

4

1

1

8

.

1

1

1

8

.

5

1

1

8

.

0

1

1

8

.

1

1

1

7

.

7

1

1

7

.

2

1

1

6

.

1

1

1

6

.

4

1

1

6

.

3

11
5.
3

1

1

6

.

0

1

1

5

.

7

1

1

1

.

8

1

1

8

.3

1

1

6

1

1

5

1

1

4

1

1

3

1

1

2

1

1

1

1

1

7

.

5

1

1

7

.

2

1

1

7

1

1

6

1

1

5

1

1

4

1

1

3

1

1

1

1

1

2

1

1

0

1

0

9

1

1

5

1

1

4

1

1

3

1

1

3

.

5

1

1

3

.

5

1

1

3

.

0

1

1

3

.

0

1

0

9

1

1

0

1
1
2

1
1
1

1

1

0

1
0
9

WETLANDS CONSERVATION AREA

TRACT "G"

WETLANDS CONSERVATION AREA

TRACT "H"

LIMITS OF WETLAND IMPACT

LIMITS OF WETLAND IMPACT

WETLAND RESTORATION AND LITTORAL

PLANTINGS TO BE INSTALLED IN

CLUSTERS AROUND THE COMPENSATING

STORAGE POND BASIN

WETLAND RESTORATION AND LITTORAL

PLANTINGS TO BE INSTALLED IN

CLUSTERS AROUND THE COMPENSATING

STORAGE POND BASIN

SEE SHEET R-102

ACCENT/FLOWERING TREES

SEE SHEET R-202

SEE SHEET

R-202

BUFFER

SCALE

SHEET

PROJECT NO.

B
Y

D
A

TE
R

E
V.

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

DATE

Date:
0'

d
a
ly

 d
e
si

g
n
 g

ro
u
p

 in
c
.

U
rb

an
 P

la
nn

in
g,

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e,

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

su
lti

ng
91

3 
N

 P
en

ns
yl

va
ni

a 
A

ve
, W

in
te

r P
ar

k,
 F

L 
32

78
9 

 (4
07

) 7
40

-7
37

3 
 w

w
w

.d
al

yd
es

ig
n.

co
m

60' 60' 120'

E-201

09/20/16

60

1441

C
O

M
P

.
 
S

T
O

R
E

A
G

E
 
E

N
H

A
N

C
E

M
E

N
T

 
P

L
A

N

C
O

M
P

E
N

S
A

T
I
V

E
 
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

 

L
A

K
E

 
R

O
B

E
R

T
'
S

 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

W
I
N

T
E

R
 
G

A
R

D
E

N
,
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

1
4-

25
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 3
/1

/2
01

6
jc

c

2
6-

24
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 5
/2

3/
20

16
jc

c

3
7-

13
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 7
/5

/2
01

6
jc

c

4
9-

20
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 7
/1

9/
20

16
jc

c

NORTH



SCALE

SHEET

PROJECT NO.

B
Y

D
A

TE
R

E
V.

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

DATE

Date:
0'

d
a
ly

 d
e
si

g
n
 g

ro
u
p

 in
c
.

U
rb

an
 P

la
nn

in
g,

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e,

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

su
lti

ng
91

3 
N

 P
en

ns
yl

va
ni

a 
A

ve
, W

in
te

r P
ar

k,
 F

L 
32

78
9 

 (4
07

) 7
40

-7
37

3 
 w

w
w

.d
al

yd
es

ig
n.

co
m

150 150 300

E-202

09/20/16

150

1441

E
N

V
I
R

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L
 
E

N
H

A
N

C
E

M
E

N
T

 
P

L
A

N

L
A

K
E

 
R

O
B

E
R

T
'
S

 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

W
I
N

T
E

R
 
G

A
R

D
E

N
,
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

1
4-

25
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 3
/1

/2
01

6
jc

c

2
6-

24
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 5
/2

3/
20

16
jc

c

3
7-

13
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 7
/5

/2
01

6
jc

c

4
9-

20
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 7
/1

9/
20

16
jc

c

UPLAND BUFFER

ENHANCED WETLAND PLANTINGS/

COMPENSATING STORAGE AREA

LAKE REAVES MANAGEMENT AREA

APPROXIMATE SHORELINE

OF LAKE REAVES

LAKE REAVES

LAKE ROBERTS

STONEYBROOKE WEST PARKWAY

PRESERVATION

NORTH



PLANTER

SOD

SOD

LOT 27

LOT 28

LOT 29

LOT 30

LOT 31

LOT 32

LOT 33

LOT 34

LOT 35

PRIVATE DOCK

PRIVATE DOCK

PRIVATE DOCK

MAXIMUM LENGTH OF DOCK NOT

TO EXCEED100' PAST NORMAL

HIGH WATER LINE (NHWL)

SCENIC

OBSERVATION

DECK

SCENIC OBSERVATION

DECK

BENCH AND DOG

STATION

10' WIDE PEDESTRIAN

WALK FROM ENTRY TO

PARKS

VIEWS TO LAKE REAVES

AND SURROUNDING

WETLAND HABITATS

WETLANDS

CONSERVATION

AREA

TRACT "G"

ELEVATED WETLAND

BOARDWALK AND

OBSERVATION DECK

PANORAMIC VIEWS OF

NATIVE FLORA/FAUNA IN

WETLAND ECOSYSTEM

WETLANDS

CONSERVATION

AREA

TRACT "H"

LINEAR PARK ALONG POND

SEE SHEET

D-201

SEE SHEET

E-202

SEE SHEET

L-201 & 202

SEE SHEET R-202

W

E

T

L

A

N

D

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

W

E

T

L

A

N

D

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

NHWL 108.11

NHWL 108.11

1

5

'

1

5

'

1

5

'

1
5
'

1
5
'

LAKE

REAVES

RETAINING WALL

CANOPY TREES

ACCENT/FLOWERING TREES

BENCHES

SEE SHEET

R-201

PEDESTRIAN PLAZA

SIDEWALK

SOD

SOD

BUFFER

10' WIDE RECREATION CORRIDOR WITH 4'
WALKING PATH

TRACT  P

2

6

0

'
 

+

/

-

W

E

T

L

A

N

D

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

SEE SHEET

R-201

SEE SHEET

R-201

LAKE ROBERTS

20'

1
0

'

HANDRAIL WITH 4" RAILS

RAISED DECK

BUILT-IN BENCHES

CRUSHED SHELL OR
ROCK STABILIZATION
APRON

15'

8
'

BENCH

BOARDER

TRASH CAN

DOGGY STATION

CRUSHED SHELL OR
STONE GROUNDCOVER

RETAINING WALL

CANOPY TREES

ACCENT/FLOWERING TREES

BENCHES

PEDESTRIAN PLAZA

SIDEWALK

SOD

SOD

BUFFER

10' WIDE RECREATION CORRIDOR WITH 4'
WALKING PATH

TRACT  P

R-201

SCALE

SHEET

PROJECT NO.

B
Y

D
A

TE
R

E
V.

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

DATE

Date:
0'

d
a
ly

 d
e
si

g
n
 g

ro
u
p

 in
c
.

U
rb

an
 P

la
nn

in
g,

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e,

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

su
lti

ng
91

3 
N

 P
en

ns
yl

va
ni

a 
A

ve
, W

in
te

r P
ar

k,
 F

L 
32

78
9 

 (4
07

) 7
40

-7
37

3 
 w

w
w

.d
al

yd
es

ig
n.

co
m

150' 150' 300'

R-201

09/20/16

150

1441

R
E

C
R

E
A

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
S

T
E

R
 
P

L
A

N

K
E

Y
/
 
R

E
C

R
E

A
T

I
O

N
 
P

L
A

N

L
A

K
E

 
R

O
B

E
R

T
'
S

 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

W
I
N

T
E

R
 
G

A
R

D
E

N
,
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

LINEAR PARK
SCALE: 1"=40'

SCENIC OBSERVATION DECK

NTS.

BENCH & DOG STATION

NTS.

NEW

BOUNDARY

1
4-

25
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 3
/1

/2
01

6
jc

c

2
6-

24
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 5
/2

3/
20

16
jc

c

3
7-

13
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 7
/5

/2
01

6
jc

c

4
9-

20
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 7
/1

9/
20

16
jc

c



1

1

8

.

9

1

1

7

.

7

1

1

7

.

3

1

1

7

.

4

1

1

7

.

3

1

1

6

.

8

1

1

7

.

6

1

1

7

.

0

1

1

7

.

3

1

1

7

.

5

1

1

9

.

6

1

1

9

.

5

119.2

112.6

1

1

7

.

3

1

1

6

.

8

1

1

7

.

6

1

1

8

.

1

1

1

7

.

7

1

1

7

.

2

1

1

1

.

8

1

1

7

.

5

1

1

7

.

2

1

1

7

1

1

6

1

1

5

1

1

4

1

1

3

1

1

1

1

1

2

1

1

0

1

0

9

1

1

5

1

1

4

1

1

3

1

1

3

.

5

1

1

3

.

5

1

1

3

.

0

1

1

3

.

0

1
1
2

1
1
1

1
1
0

1
0

9

DOG PARK

TOT LOT

PLAYGROUND

LANDSCAPED

PRIVACY BUFFER

NATIVE PLANTING

BUFFER

   5' WIDE BOARDWALK

APPROX. 280 TOTAL LINEAR FEET.

WETLAND

OBSERVATION

DECK

BENCH SEATING

OVERLOOKING

LANDSCAPE FEATURES

PRIVACY HEDGE

CANOPY TREES

LOT

18

LOT

17

LOT

19

LOT

72

ROCK GARDEN

STEPPING STONES

OR CRUSHED SHELL

PATH

WETLAND AND LITTORAL PLANTINGS TO BE INSTALLED IN

CLUSTERS AROUND THE COMPENSATING STORAGE POND BASIN

WETLAND AND LITTORAL PLANTINGS TO BE

INSTALLED IN CLUSTERS AROUND THE

COMPENSATING STORAGE POND BASIN

SOD

SOD

OPEN SPACE

SOD

INTERPRETIVE

SIGNAGE

SHRUBS &

GROUNDCOVERS

BENCH

SOD

SOD

CANOPY TREE

LANDSCAPED

OPEN SPACE

OPEN

PLAY AREA

SOD

SOD

SOD

SOD

SOD

SOD

SOD

LIFT STATION

WETLANDS

CONSERVATION AREA

TRACT "H"

WETLANDS

CONSERVATION AREA

TRACT "G"

BOARDWALK

ACCESS GATE

6' WIDE

PEDESTRIAN

CROSSING

NATIVE

INTERPRETIVE

GARDEN

ROCK RIVERBED (DRY)

ARCHED FOOT

BRIDGE

BUTTERFLY

GARDEN

FLOWERING

TREES & PLANTS

BIKE RACK

DRY ROCK

RIVERBED

10' CONCRETE

SIDEWALK

ACCENT OR

FLOWERING TREES

FITNESS TRAIL &

WORKOUT STATIONS

ACCENT OR

FLOWERING TREES

WALKING TRAIL

OVERLOOK  DECK

ACCENT OR

FLOWERING TREES

CANOPY TREE

OPEN AIR

PAVILION &

ACTIVITY AREA

   5' WIDE BOARDWALK

APPROX. 280 TOTAL LINEAR FEET.

COVERED AREA

WITH BENCH

OPEN SPACE/

PICNIC AREA

SCALE

SHEET

PROJECT NO.

B
Y

D
A

TE
R

E
V.

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

DATE

Date:
0'

d
a
ly

 d
e
si

g
n
 g

ro
u
p

 in
c
.

U
rb

an
 P

la
nn

in
g,

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e,

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

su
lti

ng
91

3 
N

 P
en

ns
yl

va
ni

a 
A

ve
, W

in
te

r P
ar

k,
 F

L 
32

78
9 

 (4
07

) 7
40

-7
37

3 
 w

w
w

.d
al

yd
es

ig
n.

co
m

30' 30' 60'

R-202

09/20/16

20

1441

R
E

C
R

E
A

T
I
O

N
 
P

L
A

N

P
A

R
K

S
 
A

N
D

 
O

P
E

N
 
S

P
A

C
E

L
A

K
E

 
R

O
B

E
R

T
'
S

 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

W
I
N

T
E

R
 
G

A
R

D
E

N
,
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

1
4-

25
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 3
/1

/2
01

6
jc

c

2
6-

24
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 5
/2

3/
20

16
jc

c

3
7-

13
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 7
/5

/2
01

6
jc

c

4
9-

20
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 7
/1

9/
20

16
jc

c

NORTH







SCALE

SHEET

PROJECT NO.

B
Y

D
A

TE
R

E
V.

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

DATE

Date:
0'

d
a
ly

 d
e
si

g
n
 g

ro
u
p

 in
c
.

U
rb

an
 P

la
nn

in
g,

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e,

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

su
lti

ng
91

3 
N

 P
en

ns
yl

va
ni

a 
A

ve
, W

in
te

r P
ar

k,
 F

L 
32

78
9 

 (4
07

) 7
40

-7
37

3 
 w

w
w

.d
al

yd
es

ig
n.

co
m

EL-301

09/20/16

NTS

1441

E
L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N
S

L
A

K
E

 
R

O
B

E
R

T
'
S

 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

W
I
N

T
E

R
 
G

A
R

D
E

N
,
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

ELEVATION
SEBASTIAN FRONT

1

ELEVATION
SEBASTIAN LEFT

1A

ELEVATION
SEBASTIAN RIGHT

1B

ELEVATION
SEBASTIAN REAR

1C

ELEVATION
CANNES FRONT

2

ELEVATION
CANNES LEFT

2A

ELEVATION
CANNES RIGHT

2B

ELEVATION
CANNES REAR

2C

NOTE:

ALL REAR & SIDE ELEVATIONS MUST HAVE THE

SAME ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES AS THE

FRONT ELEVATIONS.

1
4-

25
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 3
/1

/2
01

6
jc

c

2
6-

24
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 5
/2

3/
20

16
jc

c

3
7-

13
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 7
/5

/2
01

6
jc

c

4
9-

20
-2

01
6

R
E

V.
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

N
TS

 D
A

TE
D

 7
/1

9/
20

16
jc

c



 
Ordinance 16-42 

Page 1 of 5 
 

ORDINANCE 16-42 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA PROVIDING FOR THE ANNEXATION OF 
CERTAIN ADDITIONAL LANDS GENERALLY DESCRIBED 
AS APPROXIMATELY 78.87 ± ACRES LOCATED ON THE 
SOUTH SIDE OF STONEYBROOK WEST PARKWAY, 
NORTH OF MCKINNON ROAD AND WEST OF 
WINDERMERE ROAD INTO THE CITY OF WINTER 
GARDEN FLORIDA; REDEFINING THE CITY BOUNDARIES 
TO GIVE THE CITY JURISDICTION OVER SAID 
PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of the land, generally described as approximately 78.87 ± 
acres located at 12564 Stoneybrook West Pkwy and 12451, 12304, and 12174 Walker 
Pond Road on the south side of Stoneybrook West Parkway, north of McKinnon road and 
west of Windermere road and legally described in Section 2 of this Ordinance, which 
land is reasonably compact and contiguous to the corporate limits of the City of Winter 
Garden, Florida (“City”), has, pursuant to the prerequisites and standards set forth in § 
171.044, Fla. Stat., petitioned the City Commission for voluntary annexation; 
 
 WHEREAS, the petition for voluntary annexation referenced herein bears the 
signatures of all owners of the property or properties described in Section 2 of this 
Ordinance (i.e., the property or properties to be annexed); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has determined that the property described in Section 2 of 
this Ordinance is located in an unincorporated area of the County and that annexation 
of such property will not result in the creation of an enclave.   
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 SECTION 1: Annexation.  That the City Commission through its Planning and 
Zoning Board has conducted an investigation to determine whether the described 
property meets the prerequisites and standards set forth in Chapter 171, Fla. Stat. and 
has held a public hearing and said petition and made certain findings.  
 
 SECTION 2: Description of Area Annexed.  That, after said public hearing and 
having found such petition meets said prerequisites and standards, the property legally 
defined in ATTACHMENT “A” and graphically shown on the attached map shall be 
annexed into the City of Winter Garden, Florida.  
 
 SECTION 3: Effect of Annexation.  That the City of Winter Garden, Florida, shall 
have all of the power, authority, and jurisdiction over and within the land as described in 
Section 2 hereof, and the inhabitants thereof, and property therein, as it does and have 



 
Ordinance 16-42 

Page 2 of 5 
 

over its present corporate limits and laws, ordinances, and resolutions of said City shall 
apply and shall have equal force and effect as if all territory had been part of said City at 
the time of the passage of such laws, ordinances, and resolutions. 
 
 SECTION 4: Apportionment of Debts and Taxes.  Pursuant to § 171.061, Fla. 
Stat., the area annexed to the City shall be subject to all taxes and debts of the City upon 
the effective date of annexation. However, the annexed area shall not be subject to 
municipal ad valorem taxation for the current year if the effective date of the annexation 
falls after the City levies such tax. 
 
 SECTION 5:  Instructions to Clerk.  Within seven (7) days following the adoption of 
this Ordinance, the City Clerk or his/her designee is directed to file a copy of this 
ordinance, including ATTACHMENT “A” hereto, with the clerk of the circuit court and the 
chief administrative officer of Orange County as required by § 171.044(3), Fla. Stat.  
 
 SECTION 6:  Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, 
then such portions as are not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 7:  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon 
adoption at its second reading. 
 
FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2016. 
 
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
, 2016. 

 
ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2016, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 

 



 
Ordinance 16-42 

Page 3 of 5 
 

ATTACHMENT "A" 
  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 
PARCEL ID#: 36-22-27-0000-00-058, 01-23-27-0000-00-009 (a portion),  

01-23-27-0000-00-004, 01-23-27-0000-00-058, 
01-23-27-0000-00-030, 01-23-27-0000-00-003, 
01-23-27-0000-00-066, 01-23-27-0000-00-050 

 
DESCRIPTION: 
 

 
 

 
 



 
Ordinance 16-42 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Ordinance 16-42 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
ATTACHMENT "B"  

 
LOCATION MAP 

 
Lake Roberts Reserve 

 

 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 5 
 

 
DATE:  November 4, 2016 MEETING DATE: November 7, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: 605 & 755 E. Plant Street & 290 E. Newell Street (PRELIMINARY PLAT) 
 PROJECT NAME Heritage at Plant Street 
 PARCEL ID# 14-22-27-0000-00-012; 14-22-27-0000-00-016; 

14-22-27-5656-01-391 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting Preliminary Plat Approval for property located at 

605 & 755 E. Plant Street & 290 E. Newell Street.  
  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: BFC Plant Street LLC  / M.I. Homes of Orlando 
  
CURRENT ZONING: PUD  
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: Downtown Transitional 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 The applicant is requesting approval of the Preliminary Plat for the 

16.66 ± acre property, which is the Heritage at Plant Street 
Subdivision, for 43 new townhomes lots and 41 single family 
residential lots. The proposed Preliminary Plat is consistent with City 
Code, the property’s Planned Unit Development zoning, and has been 
reviewed and conditionally approved by the Development Review 
Committee (See attached Staff Report).   

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat subject to the 

conditions outlined in the Staff Report.   
  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Apply for Final Engineering Review and Final Plat.   
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 

Preliminary Plat 
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

Heritage at Plant Street 
605 E Plant St 

 
PRELIMINARY PLAT 

 
 

 



 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:   PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:   KELLY CARSON, URBAN DESIGNER 
DATE:   NOVEMBER 3, 2016 
SUBJECT:   PRELIMINARY PLAT  
   605 & 755 E. Plant Street & 290 E. Newell Street (16.66 +/-ACRES) 
   HERITAGE AT PLANT STREET 
    PARCEL ID #  14-22-27-0000-00-012; 14-22-27-0000-00-016; 

14-22-27-5656-01-391  
 

APPLICANT:  M.I. Homes of Orlando, LLC 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. The subject property, located north 
of East Plant Street, east of Donald Drive, and west of Perkins Street, is approximately 16.66± 
acres in size. The map below depicts the location of the subject property within the City of 
Winter Garden municipal limits. 

 



Heritage at Plant Street 
605 & 755 E. Plant St & 290 E. Newell St (16.66 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
November 3, 2016 

Page 2 
 

 

The applicant is requesting approval of Preliminary Plat of the 16.66± acre property, which is the 
Heritage at Plant Street Subdivision for 43 new townhomes lots and 41 single family residential 
lots. The subject property is located within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits, and 
carries the zoning designation PUD (Planned Unit Development) in the City of Winter Garden 
(PUD rezoning was approved by the Planning and Zoning Board on October 3, 2016). The 
subject property is designated Downtown Transitional on the Future Land Use Map of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

EXISTING USE 
The subject property currently contains several structures that remain from when the land was 
used for citrus production. There are several metal buildings located on site with associated 
parking areas and utility infrastructure. The remaining property contains remnant citrus groves, 
which are in poor condition. There is also an existing drainage pond on the property, which is 
currently utilized by both the subject property and the library parcel to the west. 

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The adjacent properties include a parcel to the east of the subject property at 805 East Plant 
Street, which is zoned R-1 and contains the Winter Garden branch of the Orange County library 
system. To the north of the subject property are a series of single-family residential lots that are 
part of the Courtlea Oaks subdivision, which are zoned R-1. There are also a series of single-
family residential properties located to the west of the subject property across from Donald 
Drive, which are zoned R-2. There is also a West Orange Trail facility and recreation area 
property located to the west at 455 East Plant Street. This property is also zoned R-2. To the 
south of the subject property are four parcels zoned I-2 and located at 606, 640, 646, and 730 
East Plant Street. The contents of these parcels include office buildings and a metal warehouse 
building. There is also a vacant City-owned property zoned C-2 located to the south at 848 East 
Plant Street. All of the adjacent properties are located within the City of Winter Garden’s 
jurisdictional limits. 

PROPOSED USE 
The developer intends to purchase the subject property and construct 43 new townhomes and 41 
single family residences. A portion of the townhomes (25 out of the proposed 43) will be 
permitted to build a granny flat above the detached garage. The project will include associated 
streets and vehicular alleys, pedestrian walks, entrance design features, a centrally-located 
recreation area with a swimming pool, a golf cart access path, retention ponds with fountain 
features, perimeter fencing, and other site improvements. 

SUMMARY 
Staff and DRC recommends conditional approval of the proposed Preliminary Plat, subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. The applicant is required to pay for the undergrounding of the overhead utility lines along 
E Plant Street. 

2. The entrance on Plant Street shall have right and left turn exiting lanes – 12’ minimum 
pavement width, as shown. 

3. 5 foot wide side building setbacks will only be allowed provided that no obstructions of 



Heritage at Plant Street 
605 & 755 E. Plant St & 290 E. Newell St (16.66 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
November 3, 2016 

Page 3 
 

 

any kind are allowed within the 5 foot setback area.  5 foot wide drainage and utility 
easements on side and rear lot lines and 10’ drainage, utility & sidewalk encroachment 
easement are required adjacent to rights-of-way.   

4. There is a significant grade change between the existing Library site and the proposed 
project.  This issue will need to be addressed with Final Engineering. 

5. A Right-of-Way maintenance agreement for landscaping, irrigation, medians, signs, special 
pavements, etc. within City rights-of-way will be required if any of these improvements are 
within City R/W.   

6. Library drainage shall be accommodated and shall include the necessary easements, etc.  
SJRWMD permit modification required.  

7. When Plant Street was improved a few years ago, a storm stub-out was provided for the 
existing flow from this parcel that doesn’t go towards the Library/Perkins.  Pre/Post 
conditions shall be met. 

8. Per the plan, HDPE pipe is proposed.  HDPE pipe shall meet all City requirements, 
including Class I bedding, laser profiling, etc.  City Standards can be found on the website.  
Revise as necessary if this is not the case. 

9. The existing lift station and discharge force main shall be examined/analyzed for capacity 
with the new development.  Any upgrades required will be at the Developer’s expense. 

10. All construction shall meet City of Winter Garden requirements for drainage, roadways and 
utilities.   

11. Existing utility and access easements shown on the Boundary Survey shall be vacated or 
extinguished prior to final plat recording. 

12. West Orange Trail R/W is owned by the City of Winter Garden with an easement to 
Orange County for the Trail.  Orange County Parks & Rec shall review and approve the 
crossing over the Trail, prior to construction.  Additional details shall be provided on the 
final construction plans to prevent vehicular access to the Trail; signage; etc. 

13. Final plans and drainage calculations shall show the maximum impervious surface allowed 
on each lot, based on the approved SJRWMD permit.  In any case however, this cannot 
exceed 65% ISR for single family per the PUD zoning, but must be supported by the 
approved St. Johns calculations/permit. 

14. Tree Removal Permit issued by the City of Winter Garden Building Department will be 
required prior to final plan approval.   

15. Traffic impact analysis is being reviewed by the City’s transportation consultant.  Turn 
lanes, etc. will be reviewed further during the final construction plan phase. 

16. Preliminary Geotechnical Report has been provided.  More detailed soil borings in roadway 
and pond are required to be submitted with Final Engineering.  Phase 1 Environmental Site 
Assessment provided but only evaluated the potential for obvious environmental concerns 
from activities on or near the site.  Endangered/threatened species or wetlands were not 
addressed. 

17. All proposed easements shall be 30’ minimum width for sanitary, water and storm; 
improvements shall be centered within the easement.  Common areas not abutting right-of-



Heritage at Plant Street 
605 & 755 E. Plant St & 290 E. Newell St (16.66 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
November 3, 2016 

Page 4 
 

 

way shall include a tract (not easement) for access and maintenance. 

 
Conditional approval of the Preliminary Plat will allow the owner to proceed with development 
plans as well as the final plat. 
 
 
 
 

MAPS 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 
Heritage at Plant Street 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Heritage at Plant Street 
605 & 755 E. Plant St & 290 E. Newell St (16.66 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
November 3, 2016 

Page 5 
 

 

 
ZONING MAP 

Heritage at Plant Street 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Heritage at Plant Street 
605 & 755 E. Plant St & 290 E. Newell St (16.66 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
November 3, 2016 

Page 6 
 

 

 
FUTURE LAND USE  MAP 

Heritage at Plant Street 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 



AutoCAD SHX Text
ST-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
UT-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY AND TOPO SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 of 3 - 3 of 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY UTILITY PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY PROVIDERS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER / SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHAEL KELLEY, P.E. ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS- CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 300 WEST PLANT ST. WINTER GARDEN, FL 34787 (407) 656-4111	EXT:2004EXT:2004

AutoCAD SHX Text
ED STEVENS DUKE ENERGY 452 E. CROWN POINT RD. WINTER GARDEN, FL 34787 (321) 229-0599

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBERT FILEBARK CENTURY LINK (407) 889-6269

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVID BORER BRIGHTHOUSE NETWORKS 2251 LUCIEN WAY MAITLAND, FL 32751 (407) 215-5944

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DT-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMBOLS & ABBREVIATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SY-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
, TOWNSHIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDEX OF SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH,

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION NO. EB-0007723

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHADWYCK H. MOORHEAD, P.E. #61781

AutoCAD SHX Text
COV

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVER SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HERITAGE AT PLANT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL ID #'S:  14-22-27-0000-00-012 14-22-27-0000-00-016 14-22-27-5656-01-391

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.I. HOMES OF ORLANDO, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
400 INTERNATIONAL PARKWAY, SUITE 470 LAKE MARY, FLORIDA 32746 (407) 531-5133

AutoCAD SHX Text
15024

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA DEVELOPMENT PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
431 E. HORATIO AVENUE, SUITE 260

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE (407) 629-8330

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX (407) 629-8336

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAITLAND, FLORIDA 32751

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT DESIGNATION PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TD-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEP 13 2016

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ZONING:	PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT EXISTING FLU:		DOWNTOWN TRANSITIONALDOWNTOWN TRANSITIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TEAM MEMBERS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPLICANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.I. HOMES 400 INTERNATIONAL PARKWAY SUITE 470 LAKE MARY, FLORIDA  32746

AutoCAD SHX Text
MADDEN, MOORHEAD, & STOKES, INC.  431 E HORATIO AVE., SUITE 260  MAITLAND, FLORIDA 32751  PHONE: 407-629-8330

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLEN & COMPANY 16 EAST PLANT ST. WINTER GARDEN, FL 32801 PHONE: 407-654-5355

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAGLEY DESIGN 1817 E. WASHINGTON ST. ORLANDO, FL 32803 PHONE: 407-719-3144

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RICK GULLET LAKE APOPKA NATURAL GASS 1320 WINTER GARDEN VINELAND RD. WINTER GARDEN, FL 34786 (407) 656-2734

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DANIEL BUTTS BFC PLANT STREET, LLC P.O. BOX 3010 WINTER PARK, FL 32790-3010 (407) 622-1700









SY-1

15024
02/17/16

N.T.S.
RJS
RJS
CHM



CIVIL ENGINEERS

PSP-1

15024
02/17/16
1" = 50'

RJS
RJS
CHM

M.
I.
 H
OM
ES
 O
F 
OR
LA
ND
O,
 L
LC



CIVIL ENGINEERS

UT-1

15024
02/17/16
1" = 50'

RJS
RJS
CHM

M.
I.

 H
OM

ES
 O

F 
OR

LA
ND

O,
 L

LC



TD-1

15024
07/26/16
1" = 50'

RJS
RJS
CHM



CIVIL ENGINEERS

DT-1

15024
02/17/16
1" = 50'

RJS
RJS
CHM

M.
I.

 H
OM

ES
 O

F 
OR

LA
ND

O,
 L

LC



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 6 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  November 3, 2016 MEETING DATE: November 7, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: 14131 W Colonial Drive (SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT) 
 PROJECT NAME Romp n’ Roll 
 PARCEL ID# 22-22-27-0000-00-037 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting a Special Exception Permit to allow for the 

property located at 14131 W Colonial Drive to operate a Children’s Activity 
Center with associated child care programs.   

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Marie Simmons 
  
CURRENT ZONING: C-2  
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: Commercial 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 The applicant is requesting a Special Exception Permit to allow the 

suite addressed 14131 W. Colonial Drive within the Winter Garden 
Shopping Center (14001 W. Colonial Drive) to be used for a 
children’s activity center with associated child care programs, such 
as, interactive classes for various age groups, day camps, Parent’s 
Night/Morning Out events, and children’s parties.   

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of the Special Exception subject to the 

conditions outlined in the staff report.   
  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Obtain all necessary building permits for interior build-out.   
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

14131 W Colonial Drive 
 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT 
 

 

 



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:   PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:   JESSICA FRYE, PLANNER I 
DATE:   November 2, 2016 
SUBJECT:   SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT 
   14131 W COLONIAL DRIVE 
   (ROMP N’ ROLL) 
   Winter Garden Business Park 
     PARCEL ID # 22-22-27-0000-00-037 
    
APPLICANT: Marie Simmons 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed Special Exception Permit for compliance with the 
City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property is located at 14131 W. Colonial Drive. The map below depicts the location of the 
subject property within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits: 

 
 
 



Romp n’ Roll 
14131 W. Colonial Dr. 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
November 7, 2016 

Page 2 
 

The subject property is located within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits, and carries the zoning 
designation of C-2 and is within the West State Road 50 Commercial Overlay.  The subject property is 
designated Commercial on the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan.  
The applicant is requesting a Special Exception Permit to allow the suite addressed 14131 W. Colonial 
Drive within the Winter Garden Shopping Center (14001 W. Colonial Drive) to be used for a children’s 
activity center with associated child care programs, such as, interactive classes for various age groups, 
day camps, Parent’s Night/Morning Out events, and children’s parties.   
The applicant has informed staff that the proposed use does not fall under the requirements of a day care 
center as determined by State criteria.  Since the use is not defined in our code and has similar 
characteristics of a day care /child care facility, staff has determined the use will still have similar impacts 
to the surrounding business owners and roads.  As such, based on the C-2 Zoning Criteria for a Special 
Exception outlined in section 118-579 (7) “[o]ther uses which the planning and zoning board determines 
are of the type of intensity of activity similar to and compatible with the permitted uses in the C-2 
district” & (8) “Children day care centers”, staff determined the use requires a Special Exception Permit.   
 
EXISTING USE 

The property consists of a large commercial building with numerous suites of various sizes, which total ± 
147,230 square feet, with the subject suite being about ± 4,600 square feet.  The current businesses within 
the Winter Garden Shopping Center are Florida Paints, H&R Block, Jets Orlando Skate, Black Tactical 
Guns, Blue 42, Direct Auto Insurance, Rosie Nail Salon, Primerica, Avon Independent Representative, 
Dollar General, Hectors Barber Shop, Servandos Restaurants, Winter Garden Florist, Solid Printer, Del 
Air, New Beginnings Thrift Store, Orange County Tax Collector Office, Little Cesar’s Pizza, Merle 
Norman, Golden Apple Restaurant, Harbor Freight, and Aldi Food Market.      
 
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 

The subject property is generally located at the northwest corner of West State Road 50 and S. Park 
Avenue. The property to the west is the Hyde Park Mobile Home Community, zoned R-2.   The property 
located to the north is the Townhomes of Winter Garden Community, and another series of townhomes 
situated on Westpoint Garden Circle (not associated with the Townhomes of Winter Garden Community), 
zoned R-3. The property located to the east of the subject property is the Winter Garden R-V Resort, and 
Enterprise Car Rental, zoned C-2. All of the surrounding properties are within the City of Winter Garden.  
 
PROPOSED USE 

The applicant proposes to open a children’s activity center with associated child care programs including 
day camps, Parents’ Night/Morning Out, and children’s parties. The business will also offer a variety of 
programs such as fitness classes, art classes, science class, tumbling, and gymnastics/dance.  General 
activity classes are held from 8:30 am to 7:00 pm, with an average of ten classes per day, Monday 
through Friday, running about 45-60 minutes per class, with some overlap.  Each class expects to have an 
enrollment of 8-10 children, but gym classes have a maximum of 15 children, art classes have a 
maximum of 10 children, and camps have a maximum enrollment of 30 children.    

Birthday Parties are held on the weekends, and general classes are suspended on the weekend.  Parent’s 
Night Out Events are held on Saturday evenings for 3 hours, twice a month.   Different franchise locations 
choose the hours for the Parent’s Night Out events, beginning as early as 5pm and ending as late as 9pm.  
Parent’s Morning Out is held for 3 hours, once a week on a scheduled weekday morning from 9am until 
12pm.  Summer Camps follow the Orange County Public School’s calendar and are held twice a week on 
Tuesday and Thursdays from 9am to 12pm. This service is also offered during Winter Break.   

 



Romp n’ Roll 
14131 W. Colonial Dr. 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
November 7, 2016 

Page 3 
 

SUMMARY 

City Staff recommends approval of the request for the Special Exception Permit to allow the operation of 
an indoor children’s activity center with associated child care programs with the following conditions: 

1. As proposed, the maximum child enrollment within the facility cannot exceed 50.  
Classes/programs offered at the same time cannot exceed the maximum of 50 students.     

2. All activities and equipment must be contained within the building, outdoor activities are 
prohibited.  

3. Interior Buildout of space requires separate building permits and has not been approved by this 
Special Exception Permit. Please submit plans for all necessary building permits.   
  



Romp n’ Roll 
14131 W. Colonial Dr. 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
November 7, 2016 

Page 4 
 

AERIAL PHOTO 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Romp n’ Roll 
14131 W. Colonial Dr. 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
November 7, 2016 

Page 5 
 

SURVEY 
 

 



Romp n’ Roll 
14131 W. Colonial Dr. 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
November 7, 2016 

Page 6 
 

SITE PLAN 



Romp n’ Roll 
14131 W. Colonial Dr. 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
November 7, 2016 

Page 7 
 

FLOOR PLAN 

 
  



Romp n’ Roll 
14131 W. Colonial Dr. 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
November 7, 2016 

Page 8 
 

SITE PHOTOS 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Romp n’ Roll 
14131 W. Colonial Dr. 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
November 7, 2016 

Page 9 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

  



Romp n’ Roll 
14131 W. Colonial Dr. 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
November 7, 2016 

Page 10 
 

SAMPLE SCHEDULE 
 

 



Romp n’ Roll 
14131 W. Colonial Dr. 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
November 7, 2016 

Page 11 
 

 
EXAMPLES OF INTERIOR SPACE 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 7 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  November 3, 2016 MEETING DATE: November 7, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: 315 Florida Avenue (Variance) 
 PROJECT NAME Lopez Front Porch Remodel 
 PARCEL ID# 23-22-27-2307-01-140 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting a variance to allow a front entryway structure 

to be built with a front yard setback of 25.3 feet in lieu of the minimum 30 
feet.  

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Ramiro Lopez 
  
CURRENT ZONING: R-2- Residential District 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: LR- Low Density Residential 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 The applicant is proposing to add a new front entryway to the 

existing structure located 25.3 feet from the front property line. The 
R-2 zoning district requires a front yard setback of 30 feet.   The 
applicant is seeking a variance of 4.7 feet to add the structure.   

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of the Variance 
  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Obtain building permits 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

315 Florida Avenue 
 

VARIANCE 
 

 

 



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:  JESSICA FRYE, PLANNER I 
DATE:  November 2, 2016 
SUBJECT:  VARIANCE 
   315 Florida Avenue (0.229 ±  ACRES) 
   PARCEL ID # 23-22-27-2307-01-140 
      
APPLICANT:   Ramiro Lopez  
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the request for a front yard setback variance for the 
property located at 315 Florida Avenue in Winter Garden, Florida. The request is for a 25.3 foot 
front yard setback in lieu of the required 30 foot front yard setback.  If approved, this variance 
will allow a new front entryway to be built 25.3 feet from the front property line.  
The subject property, located on Florida Avenue, is approximately 0.229 ± acre lot in the East 
Garden Manor, 4th Addition. The map below depicts the location of the subject property within 
the City of Winter Garden municipal limits: 

 



315 Florida Avenue – 0.229 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

November 7, 2016 
Page 2 

 

The subject property carries the residential zoning designation of R-2 and is designated LR (Low 
Density Residential) on the Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  
 

EXISTING USE 
The subject property is currently improved with a single family residence.       
 

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west of the subject property contain single-
family residential homes, have the zoning designation R-2, the future land use designation of LR, 
and are located within the City of Winter Garden’s municipal limits.   
 

PROPOSED USE 
The applicant is proposing to construct a front entryway on the existing primary structure in the 
front of the property.  The applicant will be renovating the home and adding to the existing 
primary structure; all other proposed additions and alterations will meet the R-2 zoning 
regulations, as presented.   
 

CODE REFERENCE 
 
Section 118-398 (a) The R-2 residential district requires the minimum front yard setback to be 
30 feet.     
 

The applicant is seeking a variance to the minimum front yard setback to allow a front entryway 
to be built with a 25.3 foot front yard setback in lieu of the minimum required 30 foot front yard 
setback. 
 
CODE REQUIREMENTS / CRITERIA 
 
Code Requirements/Criteria: 
Section 118-131 of the City Code that relates to the review criteria states that, “A variance may 
be granted from land development regulations by the planning and zoning board if the planning 
and zoning board concludes that literal enforcement of the provisions of land development 
regulations would result in either practical difficulties (for setback and parking provisions) or 
unnecessary hardships (for all other land development regulations) for the property at issue.”  
The code also lists the following criteria that are to be addressed before a variance can be 
approved. Underlined text is Staff’s comments concerning this particular petition. 
 
(1) Granting the variance will not cause or allow interference with the reasonable enjoyment of 

adjacent or nearby property owners or negatively impact the standard of living of the citizens 
of the city; 
The proposed front entryway will be located 25.3 feet from the front property line and should 
not negatively impact or interfere with the reasonable enjoyment of adjacent or nearby 
property owners.   

 
(2) The variance will allow a reasonable use of the property, which use is not out of character 

with other properties in the same zoning category; 
The requested variance allowing a 25.3 foot front yard setback in lieu of the required 30 foot 



315 Florida Avenue – 0.229 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

November 7, 2016 
Page 3 

front yard setback will allow reasonable use of the property.  Many of the homes in the area 
were built with front yard setbacks ranging between 25’- 30’, the applicants proposal is not 
inconsistent with the setbacks seen in the area.  The property located at 332 Florida Avenue 
received a 20 foot variance on March 4, 2013 to build an attached open carport at a front yard 
setback of 10 feet.  
 

 (3) In the context presented, strict compliance with the land development regulation will not 
further any legitimate city objective or the benefits that would be achieved under the other 
variance criteria by the granting of the variance outweigh the benefits under this criteria if 
the variance were denied; 
Strict compliance with the City’s land development regulations will not further any 
legitimate City objective.  This request does not encroach into any recorded easements, does 
not exceed the maximum impervious surface allowed in the zoning district, and is in 
compliance with all other setbacks and development regulations for the Winter Garden Code 
of Ordinances. 

 
(4) The granting of the variance is consistent with the city's comprehensive plan; and 

The variance is consistent with the provisions of the City’s Comprehensive Plan relating to 
low density residential neighborhood character. 

 
(5) The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make reasonable use of the land, 

building, or structure or the benefits that would be achieved under the other variance criteria 
by the granting of the variance outweigh the benefits under these criteria if the variance were 
denied. 
The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make reasonable use of the land.  
The proposed house should not negatively impact the neighbors and is consistent with the 
other properties in the neighborhood. Denying this variance does not benefit the property 
owner or the City. 

 
 

SUMMARY 
City Staff recommends approval of a variance Section 118-398 (a) to allow a 25.3 foot front yard 
setback in lieu of the minimum required 30 foot front yard setback to allow construction of a 
new front entryway. 
 
NEXT STEP  
Apply for the appropriate Building Permits. 

 
ATTACHMENTS  

- Aerial Photo 
- Site Plan 
- Elevations of Proposed Structure 
- Site Photos 

 

 
 



315 Florida Avenue – 0.229 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

November 7, 2016 
Page 4 

 
AERIAL PHOTO 
315 Florida Avenue 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

332 Florida Ave. 
Received a 20 ft. Variance on 

March 4, 2013 



315 Florida Avenue – 0.229 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

November 7, 2016 
Page 5 

SITE PLAN 
315 Florida Avenue 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



315 Florida Avenue – 0.229 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

November 7, 2016 
Page 6 

 
ELEVATIONS 

315 Florida Avenue 
 

 



315 Florida Avenue – 0.229 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

November 7, 2016 
Page 7 

FRONT ELEVATION ENLARGED 
315 Florida Avenue 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



315 Florida Avenue – 0.229 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

November 7, 2016 
Page 8 

SITE PHOTOS 
315 Florida Avenue 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 



315 Florida Avenue – 0.229 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

November 7, 2016 
Page 9 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 8 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  November 2, 2016 MEETING DATE: November 7, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: 1717 Bridgepebble Road (VARIANCE) 
 PROJECT NAME Holmes Screen Room Variance 
 PARCEL ID# 004-23-27-8229-21-219 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting a Variance to allow for a 15’ rear yard setback in 

lieu of the minimum required setback of 20’ to build a screen room with a solid 
roof at the property located at 1717 Bridgepebble Road in the Stone Creek 
Subdivision. 

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Tim and Nelia Holmes 
  
CURRENT ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: Low Density Residential (LR) 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 The applicant is requesting a variance of 5 feet to allow for a 25’x10’ 

screen room addition on the rear of the property.  The new screen room 
will be built at a 15 foot rear yard setback in lieu of a the minimum 
required 20’ rear yard setback as defined in the Stone Creek 
(Stoneybrook West) PUD Ordinance (Ord. 98-79) 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of the Variance request subject to the 

following condition: 
 1. The room cannot become a fully enclosed air conditioned 

space.   
  
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 

HOA Approval Letter 
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

1717 Bridgepebble Road 
 

VARIANCE 
 
 
 

 



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:  STEVE PASH, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
DATE:  NOVEMBER 1, 2016 
SUBJECT:  VARIANCE 
   1717 Bridgepebble Road (0.12+/- ACRES) 
   PARCEL ID # 04-23-27-8229-21-219 
      
APPLICANT:  Tim and Nelia Holmes 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the request for a variance for property located at 1717 
Bridgepebble Road in Winter Garden, Florida. The request is to allow an addition (screen room) 
to the primary structure to be built at a 15 foot rear yard setback in lieu of the minimum required 
20 foot rear yard setback.  
The subject property, located on Bridgepebble Road, is an approximately 0.12 ± acre lot in the 
Stone Creek Subdivision. The map below depicts the location of the subject property within the 
City of Winter Garden municipal limits: 

 



1717 Bridgepebble Road – 0.12 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

November 7, 2016 
Page 2 

The subject property carries the zoning designation PUD (Planned Unit Development) Ordinance 
98-79 and is designated LR (Low Density Residential) on the Future Land Use Map of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.  This neighborhood was included in the Stoneybrook West PUD, which 
was amended on several occasions through Resolution 03-12, Resolution 04-04, and Resolution 
05-25.  All of these Resolutions amended the original PUD Ordinance to change from 
apartments to single-family homes.    
 
EXISTING USE 
The subject property is currently develoed with a single-family house.  
 
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
All of the properties adjacent to the subject property are zoned PUD and in the Stone Creek 
neighborhood, which is within the City of Winter Garden’s Municipal limits. The properties to 
the north, south, and east of the subject property are all developed with single family residences. 
The property to the west is a neighborhood park.   
 
PROPOSED USE 
The applicant is proposing to construct a screen room with a solid roof on the existing primary 
structure in the rear of the property.   
 
CODE REFERENCE 
Ord. 98-79. The Stoneybrook West PUD Ordinance addresses minimum yard requirements. This 
oridinance states that the minimum rear yard setback for a single-family residential building in 
the PUD is 20 feet.   
 
The applicant is seeking a variance to the minimum rear yard setback to allow a screen room 
with a solid roof to be built at a 15 foot rear yard setback in lieu of the minimum required 20 foot 
rear yard setback. 

 
CODE REQUIREMENTS / CRITERIA 
Section 118-131 of the City Code that relates to the review criteria states that, “A variance may 
be granted from land development regulations by the planning and zoning board if the planning 
and zoning board concludes that literal enforcement of the provisions of land development 
regulations would result in either practical difficulties (for setback and parking provisions) or 
unnecessary hardships (for all other land development regulations) for the property at issue.”  
The code also lists the following criteria that are to be addressed before a variance can be 
approved. Underlined text is Staff’s comments concerning this particular petition. 
 
(1) Granting the variance will not cause or allow interference with the reasonable enjoyment of 

adjacent or nearby property owners or negatively impact the standard of living of the citizens 
of the city; 
The proposed screen room will be located 15 feet from the rear property line and should not 
negatively impact or interfere with the reasonable enjoyment of adjacent or nearby property 
owners.  The Homeowners Association has approved the addition and this home will not 
negatively impact the standard of living of the citizens of the City.  

 



1717 Bridgepebble Road – 0.12 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

November 7, 2016 
Page 3 

(2) The variance will allow a reasonable use of the property, which use is not out of character 
with other properties in the same zoning category; 
The requested variance allowing a 15 foot rear yard setback in lieu of the required 20 foot 
rear yard setback will allow reasonable use of the property.  Other properties in the 
neighborhood have similar structures and  granting this variance will not change the 
character of the neighborhood.   

 
(3) In the context presented, strict compliance with the land development regulation will not 

further any legitimate city objective or the benefits that would be achieved under the other 
variance criteria by the granting of the variance outweigh the benefits under this criteria if 
the variance were denied; 
Strict compliance with the City’s land development regulations will not further any 
legitimate City objective.  This request does not encroach into any recorded easements, does 
not exceed the maximum impervious surface allowed in this PUD zoning district, and is in 
compliance with all other setbacks and development regulations in the Winter Garden Code 
of Ordinances 

(4) The granting of the variance is consistent with the city's comprehensive plan; and 
The variance is consistent with the provisions of the City’s Comprehensive Plan relating to 
low density residential neighborhood character. 

 
(5) The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make reasonable use of the land, 

building, or structure or the benefits that would be achieved under the other variance criteria 
by the granting of the variance outweigh the benefits under these criteria if the variance were 
denied. 
The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make reasonable use of the land 
and the location of the proposed screen room should not negatively impact the neighbors.  
Denying this variance does not benefit the property owner or the City. 

 
 

SUMMARY 
Staff recommends approval of a variance to Ordinace 98-79 to allow a 15 foot rear yard setback 
in lieu of the minimum required 20 foot rear yard setback to allow construction of a new screen 
room with the following condition: 

 1. The room cannot become a fully enclosed air conditioned space. 
 
NEXT STEP  
Follow all City regulations and apply for a building permit for the proposed screen room. 

 
ATTACHMENTS  

- Aerial Photo 
- Site Plan 
- Site Photos 

 



1717 Bridgepebble Road – 0.12 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

November 7, 2016 
Page 4 

 
AERIAL PHOTO 

1717 Bridgepebble Road 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



1717 Bridgepebble Road – 0.12 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

November 7, 2016 
Page 5 

SITE PLAN 
1717 Bridgepebble Road 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Screen Room 



1717 Bridgepebble Road – 0.12 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

November 7, 2016 
Page 6 

SITE PHOTOS 
1717 Bridgepebble Road 

 
Looking north at back yard.  

 

 
 

Looking east at property behind proposed screen room. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



1717 Bridgepebble Road – 0.12 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

November 7, 2016 
Page 7 

SITE PHOTOS 
1717 Bridgepebble Road 

 
View to show separation between subject home and neighbors house. 

 
 

 
 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 






	2016-11-07 PZ Agenda ONLY
	2016-10-03 PZ Minutes DRAFT
	Item 4
	P & Z Cover Memo Lake Roberts Reserve
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Location Map
	12451 Walker Pond Rd (Lake Roberts Reserve PUD) Staff Report
	LRR- PD plans
	2014-10Q PSP
	REC PLANS
	1441 Recreation plan 2-SPECS
	1441 Recreation plan 2-D-201
	1441 Recreation plan 2-E-201
	1441 Recreation plan 2-E-202
	1441 Recreation plan 2-R-201
	1441 Recreation plan 2-R-202
	1441 ENTRANCE SHEET 1 rev 6 23 16
	1441 ENTRANCE SHEET 2 REV 6 23 16
	1441 Recreation plan 2-EL-301


	Ord 16-42 Lake Roberts Reserve Annex

	Item 5
	P & Z Cover Memo Heritage PPA
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Location Map
	Heritage at Plant Street (Pre-Plat) Staff Report
	PRE-PLAT plans
	(3)15024 PDP SY-1-Layout1
	(4)15024 PDP ST-1-24x36
	(5)15024 PDP UT-1-24x36
	(6)15024 PDP TD-1-24x36
	(7)15024 PDP DT-1-Layout1


	Item 6
	P & Z Cover Memo Romp n Roll
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Location Map
	Romp n Roll_ 14131 W Colonial- P&Z STAFF REPORT SEP

	Item 7
	P & Z Cover Memo 315 Florida Ave
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Location Map
	Florida Ave_ 315 _ Variance P&Z Staff Report
	CODE REFERENCE
	Section 118-398 (a) The R-2 residential district requires the minimum front yard setback to be 30 feet.
	The applicant is seeking a variance to the minimum front yard setback to allow a front entryway to be built with a 25.3 foot front yard setback in lieu of the minimum required 30 foot front yard setback.
	CODE REQUIREMENTS / CRITERIA
	Code Requirements/Criteria:


	Item 8
	P & Z Cover Memo - 1717 Bridgepebble Road
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Location Map
	1717 Bridgepebble Rd - Variance P&Z Staff Report
	CODE REFERENCE
	Ord. 98-79. The Stoneybrook West PUD Ordinance addresses minimum yard requirements. This oridinance states that the minimum rear yard setback for a single-family residential building in the PUD is 20 feet.
	The applicant is seeking a variance to the minimum rear yard setback to allow a screen room with a solid roof to be built at a 15 foot rear yard setback in lieu of the minimum required 20 foot rear yard setback.
	CODE REQUIREMENTS / CRITERIA

	HOA letter




